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William N. Myhre, Esq.

K & L Gates LLP

1601 K Street NW
Washington, DC 20006-1600

Dear Mr. Myhre:

We are responding to your letter of February 8, 2011, with exhibits, which requested a
preliminary determination that certain work proposed to be performed overseas on the vessel
LEWEK AMBASSADOR (ex — DMT TOPAZ; ex — AGNES CANDIES), official number
1071956, (the “Vessel”) will not result in a loss of the Vessel’s ability to obtain a coastwise
endorsement.

As a preliminary matter, we note that the Vessel is currently documented with a registry
endorsement only and, as you have acknowledged, the Vessel’s current ownership structure does
not satisfy the test of 75% U.S. citizen ownership necessary to be eligible for a coastwise
endorsement. However, in both your letter of February 8, 2011, and in a subsequent exchange of
e-mails on February 9, 2011, you have indicated that the owning entity will comply with
applicable U.S. citizenship requirements before any application for a coastwise endorsement is
made. The purpose of your submission at this time is simply to confirm that the Vessel itself will
not forfeit its eligibility for a coastwise endorsement, when one is applied for, on the basis of the
proposed overseas work.

As you have indicated, the Vessel was built by Bender Shipbuilding and Repair Co. Inc., in
Mobile, Alabama, in 1998. You now propose to perform certain work to the vessel overseas.

46 C.F.R. § 67.177 establishes a two-part test to determine whether any considerable part of its
hull or superstructure has been built upon or substantially altered, as a consequence of which the
vessel would be deemed “rebuilt foreign™ and, as a further consequence, not eligible to engage in
the coastwise trades of the United States.

The first test, also known as the “major component test,” requires that the vessel be deemed
rebuilt foreign “when a major component of the hull or superstructure not built in the United
States is added to the vessel.” 46 C.F.R. § 177(a) Although the term “major component” is not
defined by statute or regulation, longstanding agency practice, affirmed by the Courts
(Shipbuilders Council of America v. U.S. Coast Guard, 578 F. 3d 234 (4™ Cir. 2009)) defines it
as a new, separate and completely-constructed unit, built separate from and added to the vessel,
that weighs more than 1.5% of the steelweight (or discounted lightship weight) of the vessel.




Under the second test, also known as the “considerable part test,” only a certain quantity of hull
and superstructure work can be performed on a coastwise qualified vessel outside of the United
States without risk of the loss of its coastwise eligibility. For vessels of which the hull and
superstructure are constructed of steel, as in this case, “a vessel is not considered rebuilt when
work performed on its hull or superstructure constitutes 7.5 percent or less of the vessel’s
steelweight prior to the work.” 46 C.F.R. § 67.177(b)(3)

We also note that, for purposes of the tests described above, the terms “hull” and
“superstructure” are defined at 46 C.F.R. § 67.3, as follows (in pertinent part):

“Hull ” means the shell, or outer casing, and internal structure below the main deck which
provides both the flotation envelope and structural integrity of the vessel in its normal
operations. (emphasis added)

“Superstructure” means the main deck and any other structural part above the main deck.
(emphasis added)

In this case it has been well-documented that the “major component test” will have been satisfied
in that any new and separately constructed units proposed to be added to the Vessel overseas will
weigh considerably less than 1.5% of the Vessel’s steelweight. However, the weights of those
units will be fully taken into account in applying the “considerable part test.”

In order to aid our assessment of the requirements of the “considerable part test” in this case we
referred your submission to the Coast Guard’s Naval Architecture Division (“NAD?) for their
review of (i) the general plausibility of your assessment of the vessel’s steelweight, and (ii) your
categorization of the work between those matters which were deemed structural (and, therefore,
counted in the calculation of the applicable percentage) and those deemed non-structural (and not
counted).

With regard to the first issue, at the suggestion of the NAD, by our e-mail dated March 14, 2011,
we sought additional information from you concerning the calculation of the Vessel’s discounted
lightship steelweight calculations. We did so, in this case, because the percentage of steel work
proposed to be done overseas (projected as 7.43% of the Vessel’s steelweight based upon a
steelweight calculation of 746.24 metric tons) fell quite close to the 7.5% threshold. You
submitted that additional information by letter dated March 24, 2011, which revealed, based
upon new calculations prepared by Shiptech Naval Architects, the Vessel’s steelweight to be
767.81 metric tons. This increase in the Vessel’s steelweight yielded a corresponding decrease in
the percentage of projected steel work to be done overseas to 7.22% --- still under the 7.5%
threshold but by a somewhat wider margin.

However, the NAD completed its review of your initial and supplemental documentation and
issued its report dated May 9, 2011, and, for the reasons stated therein, it deemed the original
Bender Shipyard steelweight estimate of 746.24 metric tons to be the more accurate of the two
estimates. Consequently, we will accept that estimate for the purposes of this determination.
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With regard to the second issue, the NAD’s sole exception to your categorization of the proposed
work between that which was structural and that which was non-structural related to the
weathertight doors to be installed on the Main Deck. However, it was determined that the effect
of including these doors in the weight estimate of structural work would be negligible and,
therefore, inconsequential for purposes of a preliminary determination. However, we agree with
the NAD that those doors should be properly categorized in your post-modification submittal.

Consequently, the NAD’s review and findings, which we have attached hereto as Exhibit A,
confirmed your submission on both counts, with the minor but negligible exception noted.

In light of these findings, and your calculation that the steelwork to be performed on the vessel
would constitute 55.44 metric tons, or 7.43% (and less than 7.5%) of the Vessel’s steelweight,
we find that, by regulation, the Vessel would not be considered rebuilt.

For these reasons we conclude, and confirm, that performance of the work, as described, to the
Vessel outside of the United States will not result in the Vessel being deemed to have been
rebuilt foreign and will not jeopardize the Vessel’s eligibility for a coastwise endorsement.

However, we caution you that this is a preliminary determination based upon the descriptions
you have provided of the proposed work. We further caution you that your proposal comes very
close to the 7.5% threshold, with little margin for error, and that you may not assume that
favorable exercise of discretion will be automatic in the event that the work actually performed
exceeds that threshold. We ask that you confirm to this office in writing following completion of
the work that the work actually done to the Vessel is as you have described it, with regard to both
the weights of new and separately constructed units actually added to the vessel as well as the
overall weight of steelwork actually done, or, if not, that you provide documentation of the work,
as done, with supporting calculations and appropriate drawings.

Sincerely,

Director



